

Trinidad & Tobago Cricket Board

Constitution

Preamble

The national authority for the promotion of the game of cricket in Trinidad and Tobago was founded on the 26th June 1956 under the name Trinidad Cricket Council. In 1958 the name was changed to Trinidad & Tobago Cricket Council to give recognition to the development of the game in the sister Isle, Tobago.

The membership of the Council in its formative years comprised nominated members mainly, but from 1969 constitutional changes were made until January 1980 when major changes were introduced to democratize the organization, and the name was changed to the Trinidad & Tobago Cricket Board of Control.

In the period 1980-1997 several amendments were made to the Constitution to reflect organizational changes as a consequence of growth and expansion.

Over the years the membership has ensured that our objects have always been our focal point and have made provision in our Constitution to protect and promote our core purpose.

The Board was incorporated under Act 34 of 1989 on the 28th day of July 1989.

A review of the Constitution was made at a Special General Meeting held on Saturday 28th June 2003 after a draft was submitted to all stakeholders for comment and amendments. The circulated amendments were considered and approved unanimously by members present.

Now therefore the following provisions shall have effect as the Constitution of the Trinidad & Tobago Cricket Board from the effective date.

Article 1

The organization (formerly known as the Trinidad & Tobago Cricket Board of Control) shall be called the Trinidad & Tobago Cricket Board (hereinafter referred to as “the Board”).

Article 2 - Objects

The objects of the Board shall be :

- 2.01 - To advance, improve, promote, control, regulate and supervise all cricket in Trinidad & Tobago organised under the auspices of the Board
- 2.02 - To arrange, control and manage inter-regional and international tournaments promoted or sanctioned by the West Indies Cricket Board Inc. directly or through appointed agents or representatives.
- 2.03 - To perform all such other acts or things as may seem to the Board to be necessary or conducive to the development of cricket in Trinidad & Tobago in particular and in the West Indies in general.

Article 3 - Membership

The membership of the Board shall comprise:

- 3.01 - The Patron
- 3.02 - The President, 1st Vice President, 2nd Vice President, General Secretary and Treasurer
- 3.03 - Three (3) members from each Zonal Council elected for a two year term from among Clubs and Affiliated Leagues/Associations representatives only.
- 3.04 - Two (2) members from the Tobago Cricket Association elected by the said Association.
- 3.05 - Two (2) members from the Secondary Schools Cricket League elected by the said League.
- 3.06 - Two (2) members of the Primary Schools Cricket League elected by the said League.

- 3.07 - Two (2) members of the Trinidad and Tobago Cricket Umpires Council elected by the said Council.
- 3.08 - Two (2) members of the Trinidad and Tobago Women's Cricket Board of Control elected by the said Board.
- 3.09 - Six (6) persons elected by Clubs which have been accepted to participate in the National League Club Competition of the Board. These persons shall be elected for a two year term in accordance with Article 4.03.
- 3.10 - Three (3) persons, one each from North, Central and South Zonal Super League competition elected by the Clubs which have been accepted to participate in the respective Zonal Super Leagues. These persons shall be elected for a two year term in accordance with Article 4.03.
- 3.11 - Six (6) persons nominated by the Executive Committee of the Board at the first meeting of the Committee after the Annual General Meeting at which elections are held.
- 3.12 - Honorary Life Members
- 3.13 - Honorary Members
- 3.14 - Corporate Members

Article 4 - Election of Members of the Board

- 4.01 - The President of the Republic of Trinidad and Tobago shall be invited to be Patron of the Board
- 4.02 - The Officers referred to in 3.02 above shall be elected at an Annual General Meeting of the Board for a two year term. They shall not necessarily be elected from members of the Board and shall hold office until the termination of the meeting at which their successors are elected. Outgoing Officers shall be eligible for re-election

- 4.03 - For the purpose of electing members referred to in Article 3.09 and 3.10 above each Club accepted in the National League and Zonal Super League Competitions of the Board shall be requested to submit nominations accordingly on the prescribed form for the election of Club representatives on the Board, such nomination to be duly signed by the respective nominees.

A letter attached to the nomination form and signed by the nominee shall be satisfactory evidence of the nominee's acceptance of the nomination.

Nominations must be submitted to the General Secretary of the Board not later than the first day of September in the year of election. In the event of nominations exceeding the number of members to be elected, the General Secretary shall convene a meeting of the said clubs for the specific purpose of electing representatives from the nominations received.

Each club shall be entitled to two (2) representatives with the right to vote at such meeting, for which seven (7) days notice shall be given.

- 4.04 - For the purpose of electing members referred to in 3.11 above, the six (6) Nominated Members shall be eligible to vote at the Annual General Meeting and to stand for office. If any Nominated Member is elected as one of the six (6) Executive Members, he shall be re-confirmed as a Nominated Member at the first meeting of the Executive Committee after the Annual General Meeting at which elections are held.

- 4.05 - Honorary Life Membership shall be offered to persons who have given long, meritorious and outstanding service to cricket in Trinidad and Tobago either as Administrators and/or players.

Honorary Life Members shall be elected at the Annual General Meeting of the Board on the recommendation by the Executive Committee. There shall at no time be more that six (6) such members.

Honorary Life Members shall enjoy all the rights and privileges of a member except the right to vote.

Their membership may be withdrawn only after due investigations and by two-thirds majority vote at a General Meeting for gross violation of the Constitution or for conduct which would bring the Board and/or Cricket into disrepute.

- 4.06 - Persons and or organizations who have made outstanding contribution to the development of cricket in Trinidad and Tobago and the West Indies shall be selected as Honorary Members by the Executive Committee and approved at an Annual General Meeting of the Board.

They shall enjoy all rights of a member except the right to vote. There shall be no more than twenty (20) such members at anytime.

- 4.07 - Corporate Members

- (a) Corporate Members shall be Firms/Organisations invited by the Board to be members and shall pay an annual subscription determine by the Executive Committee. They shall be entitled to appoint a member of their Firm/Organisation to represent them at meetings of the Board and to enjoy all rights and privileges of a member except the right to vote.
- (b) Corporate Members shall be entitled to two (2) special invitations to all Local Representative, Regional and International matches organized by the Board.
- (c) Corporate Members shall be entitled to have their name and logo printed without cost on relevant publications issued by the Board and to special rates for all other advertisement.
- (d) Corporate Members shall be entitled to purchase, in advance of public sale, tickets for any Regional and International matches organized by the Board.
- (e) The Board shall ensure, whenever possible, that the name and type of business of a Corporate Member are promoted and supported by zones, clubs, players and affiliates of the Board.

Article 5 - Management

- 5.01 - There shall be an Executive Committee of the Board with specific duties and authority set out in Article 6

The Committee shall comprise:

- (a) The Officers of the Board
 - (b) Six (6) members of the Board elected at an Annual General Meeting of the Board for a two year term.
- 5.02 - The Committee may employ a Chief Executive Officer (CEO) who shall not necessarily be a member of the Board and determine his duties and terms and conditions of employment.

The CEO shall be responsible for the day to day management of the affairs of the Board and for the operations of the Secretariat. If he is not a member of the Executive Committee he shall be ex-officio a member without voting rights.

- 5.03 - The Committee may employ a Director of Cricket Development responsible for development activities associated with the Sir Frank Worrell Development Centre with particular reference to youth cricket in all its aspects, and determine his duties and terms and conditions of employment.

If the Director is not a member of the Executive Committee he shall be ex-officio a member without voting rights.

Article 6 - Duties & Authority of the Executive Committee

The Executive Committee shall be responsible for the overall management of the affairs of the Board within stated policy and practice and shall have the following duties and authority:

- 6.01 - To elect as is necessary the Board's representatives on any Regional or International organization to which the Board is affiliated/associated.
- 6.02 - To appoint members to represent the Board on any Committee or organization on which the Board is invited to serve.
- 6.03 - To issue Regulations and Guidelines for the efficient operation of Zonal Councils.
- 6.04 - To appoint Assistant General Secretaries and other support personnel as necessary and determine their duties.

- 6.05 - To employ as and when deemed necessary persons or organizations to perform such duties and undertake such responsibilities on behalf of the Board and settle terms and conditions of employment.
- 6.06 - To authorize expenditure in accordance with the approved Budget of the Board.
- 6.07 - To appoint sub-committees consisting of members and /or persons not members of the Board for such purposes as may be deemed necessary and expedient and fix the Terms of Reference of such sub-committees.
- 6.08 - To fill vacancies occurring of Officers and Executive Members, except as provided for in Article 20, and Standing Committees or in the membership of the Board as listed in Article 3 sub-clauses 3.09, 3.10 and 3.11 above and make temporary appointments.
- 6.09 - To recommend to the Annual General Meeting of the Board persons on whom the honour of Honorary Life and Honorary Membership should be conferred.

Article 7- Zonal Councils

For the purpose of promoting, controlling, regulating and supervising cricket competitions in Trinidad the Board shall from time to time determine Zonal areas giving due consideration to distribution of population and other relevant information..

Each Zone shall be managed by a Zonal Council comprising the following:

- 7.01 - Representatives of clubs participating in the competitions organized by the Zonal Council elected in accordance with Article 8.02 on the basis of one (1) representative for every four (4) clubs or part thereof, but not less than six (6) representatives in any Zone.
- 7.02 - Two (2) representatives of each Affiliated Leagues/Association within the Zone elected by such Association
- 7.03 - Two (2) persons nominated by the Zonal Council in accordance with Article 8.01.
- 7.04 - Two (2) representatives of the Secondary Schools Cricket League from schools within the Zone elected by the League.

- 7.05 - Two (2) representatives of the Primary Schools Cricket League from schools within the Zone elected by the said League.
- 7.06 - Two (2) representatives of the Umpires Zonal Association elected by the said association.

The Zonal Council shall operate in accordance with Regulations issued by the Executive Committee of the Board.

Article 8 - Election of Members of a Zonal Council

Notwithstanding provisions contained in Article 7, the existing Trinidad and Tobago Cricket Board of Control in the first instance shall take steps as are necessary for the formation of Zonal Councils and thereafter members of a Council shall be elected as follows:

- 8.01 - The Nominated Members referred to in article 7.03 shall be appointed for a two year term at the first meeting of the Zonal Council after its Annual General Meeting at which Officers were elected.

The outgoing Nominated Members shall be eligible for re-election to hold office and to vote.

- 8.02 - For the purpose of electing representatives referred to in Article 7.01 each club accepted in the Zone competition shall be asked to submit nominations on a prescribed form for the election of Club representatives on the Council, such nomination to be duly signed by the respective nominees. A letter attached to the nomination form and signed by the nominee shall be satisfactory evidence of the nominee's acceptance of the nomination.

Nominations shall be submitted to the Zone Secretary not later than 31st August in the year of elections. In the event of nominations exceeding the numbers to be elected, the Zone Secretary shall convene a meeting of the said Clubs for the specific purpose of electing the representatives from the nominations received. Each Club shall be entitled to two (2) representatives with the right to vote at such meeting for which seven (7) days notice shall be given.

All other members of a Zonal Council shall be elected/appointed by their respective organization in accordance with their Constitution.

Article 9 - Officers of a Zonal Council

The officers of a Zonal Council shall be:-

- (a) The Chairman
- (b) A Vice Chairman
- (c) A Secretary
- (d) A Treasurer

They shall be elected from among the membership of the Zonal Council with at least (2) officers from the club representatives and shall serve for a term of two (2) years. At its first meeting after the Annual General Meeting at which officers are elected the Zonal Council shall appoint Assistant Secretaries to assist with the operations of the Council. The Assistant Secretaries shall enjoy all the rights of a member except the right to vote.

Article 10 - Duties of Officers of the Board

10.01 - President

The President shall preside at every meeting of the Board and shall be the chairman of the Executive Committee and responsible for co-ordinating its functions.

10.02 - Vice President

In the absence of the President at any meeting of the Board or Executive Committee a Vice President in order of seniority shall preside and shall enjoy for the time being the same right as if he were President.

10.03 - General Secretary

The General Secretary shall be responsible for keeping correct Minutes of the proceedings of the Board and Executive Committee, official correspondence and records of the Board. He shall delegate such of his duties as he deems fit to the appointed Assistant General Secretaries.

10.04 - Treasurer

The Treasurer shall keep proper Books of Accounts and shall receive all monies due to the Board and issue official receipts. He shall be responsible for the annual Budget of the Board.

He shall present quarterly statements of receipts and expenditure to the quarterly meeting of the Board and an Audited Statement and Balance Sheet to the Annual General Meeting. He shall open accounts at such Bank or Banks as the Executive Committee may decide from time to time.

10.05 - Officers

- The Officers shall also perform such other duties as are assigned to them from time to time.

Article 11 – Meetings

11.01 - Annual General

The Annual General Meeting of the Board shall be held in the month of October in every year of such time and place as may be deemed convenient by the Executive Committee.

Whenever the Executive Committee considers it necessary, in the interest of the Board, to change the month of the Annual General Meeting, it may do so provided that no such change shall cause the meeting to be held later than the 15th December of that year.

The meeting shall be held for the following purposes:-

- 11.01.01 - To confirm minutes of previous General Meetings.
- 01.02 - To receive the General Secretary's Report on behalf of the Executive Committee
- 01.03 - To receive the Treasurer's Statement of Accounts and Audited Balance Sheet for the previous year.
- 01.04 - To elect officers as necessary.
- 01.05 - To elect members of the Executive Committee as necessary.
- 01.06 - To appoint Auditor(s).
- 01.07 - To consider applications for affiliation in accordance with Article 9

- 11.02 - The General Secretary shall convene a Special General Meeting of the Board on receiving a requisition signed by not less than 15 members of the Board or three (3) of the Zonal Councils, stating clearly the business to be discussed.
- Such special General Meetings shall be called within 14 days of the receipt of such requisition.
- In urgent cases the President may summon a Special General Meeting.
- 11.03 - General
- General Meetings of the Board shall be held quarterly at a time and place to be decided by the Executive Committee to :-
- 03.01 - Receive the Report of the Executive Committee.
- 03.02 - Receive Reports from Zonal Councils and other affiliates.
- 03.03 - Transact any General Business.
- 11.04 - Executive
- Meetings of the Executive Committee shall be held not less than eight (8) times in a cricket year – November to October the following year.

Article 12 – Procedure at Annual Special & General Meetings

- 12.01 - If within half an hour the time appointed for an Annual Special or General Meeting a quorum is not present, the meeting shall stand adjourned to the same day in the next week at the same time and place. If at any such adjourned meeting a quorum is not present any members present shall form a quorum and may transact the business for which the meeting was called.
- 12.02 - At any Annual, Special or General Meeting a resolution put to the vote shall be decided by the show of hands unless before the resolution is put to the vote a ballot is demanded either by the Chairman of the meeting or by at least seven (7) members present. Unless a ballot is so demanded a resolution has been carried or lost as the case may be and an entry to that effect made in the minutes of the proceedings of the meeting shall be conclusive evidence of the fact without proof of the number or proportion of the votes recorded in favour of or against such resolution.

- 12.03 - If a ballot is demanded as aforesaid it shall be taken in such a manner and at such a time and place as the Chairman of the meeting directs either at once or after an interval or adjournment. The result of the ballot shall be deemed to be the resolution of the meeting at which the ballot was demanded. In the case of any dispute as to the admission or rejection of the vote, the Chairman of the meeting shall determine the same and such determination made in good faith shall be final and conclusive.
- 12.05 - The Chairman may, with the consent of the meeting, and shall if directed by the meeting, adjourn the meeting from time to time but no business shall be transacted at any adjourned meeting other than the business left unfinished at the meeting at which the adjournment took place.

Article 13 - Notice of Meeting

- 13.01 - Annual, Special or General
At least seven (7) clear days notice shall be given for any such meeting.
- 13.02 - Executive
Three (3) days notice shall be given for meetings of the Executive Committee.

Article 14 - Quorum

- 14.01 - At all meetings of the Board a third of the membership shall form a quorum
- 14.02 - At all meetings of the Executive Committee at least 50% of the membership shall form a quorum.

Article 15 - Voting

- 15.01 - Each member present at any meeting of the Board or Executive Committee shall be entitled to one vote.
- 15.02 - At meetings of the Board the President shall have an original as well as a casting vote but at all meetings of the Executive Committee, the Chairman shall have a casting vote only.

- 15.03 - Save in the case of alterations and/or amendments to this Constitution and Rules for which expressed provision is made hereafter, all decisions of the Board and its Executive Committee shall be by majority vote.

Article 16 – Standing Committee

The Executive Committee shall be empowered to appoint at its first meeting in each Board's year the following Standing Committees:-

16.01 - National Senior Selection Committee

The National Senior Selection Committee shall comprise three (3) members who may not be members of the Board. The Executive Committee shall name the Chairman. The three members shall recommend the Captain which recommendation shall be subject to approval of the Executive Committee. The Captain shall join the Selection Committee for the purpose of selecting National Senior teams to represent Trinidad & Tobago and naming the five (5) Cricketers of the Year.

The Captain shall have voting rights and the Chairman shall have an original and casting vote.

16.02 - National Junior Selection Committee

There shall be Youth Selection Committees in age groups 19 and 17, and 15 and 13.

Each Committee shall comprise three (3) persons, not necessarily members of the Board, involved in the organization and promotion of youth cricket and with the necessary cricket knowledge.

A member of the Senior Selection Committee shall be a member of the 19 and 17 Committee while a member of the 19 and 17 committee shall be a member of the 15 and 13 Committee.

The Executive Committee shall name the Chairman of each Committee and the Captain on the recommendation of the respective committees.

The Committees shall be responsible for naming the five (5) cricketers of the year in each age group.

16.03 - Cricket Development Committee

The Cricket Development Committee shall operate under the authority of the Executive Committee and shall be divided into two (2) sub-committees, National Coaching and National Teams Preparation.

The Director of Cricket Development shall ex-officio be a member of this Committee

16.03.01 - National Coaching Committee

The National Coaching Committee shall consist of five (5) members, three (3) of whom must be qualified Level 11 or Level 111 coaches.

The Chairman and Secretary shall be appointed by the Executive.

The Committee shall be responsible for the organization and management of approved National Coaching programmes including the training of Coaches.

The Committee may be assisted by Zonal Councils and other affiliates in the performance of its responsibilities.

16.03.02 - National Teams Preparation

The National Teams Preparation Committee shall consist of five (5) members and shall provide support services for the Selectors to ensure the adequate preparation of teams to represent Trinidad and Tobago in regional tournaments or such other tournaments recognized by the Executive Committee.

The Chairman and Secretary shall be appointed by the Executive Committee.

16.04 - Disciplinary Committee

04.01 - The Disciplinary Committee of the Board shall consist of five (5) members not necessarily members of the Board and three (3) members shall constitute a quorum.

04.02 - There shall be a disciplinary committee appointed by the National League sub-committee to deal with disciplinary matters related to the National League and Zonal Super League.

The Committee shall comprise five (5) members of which not more than two (2) shall be representatives of National League Clubs or Zonal Super League clubs.

Appeals against decisions of the National League Disciplinary Committee shall be referred to the Special Tribunal of the Board.

Article 17 - Tribunal

There shall be a Tribunal of not more than five (5) persons. Three (3) members shall form a quorum.

It shall deal with appeals against decisions of the National Disciplinary Committee and the National League Disciplinary Committee.

It shall have the right to agree or disagree with decisions of the respective Disciplinary Committees as well as reduce or increase penalties and/or to refer matters back to the respective Disciplinary Committee with guidelines for re-hearing.

Article 18 - Sanctions

Any member of the Board or its Committees who conducts himself in a manner which is likely to bring the Board into disrepute shall have sanctions imposed on him through a motion of no confidence duly passed at a General Meeting of the Board by 2/3 majority vote.

The member shall be given a copy of the motion at least seven (7) days before the meeting and he shall have the right to be heard at the meeting, and the right of appeal to the Tribunal of the Board.

Article 19 – Affiliation of Association/League and other Bodies

- 19.01 - The Board shall recognize the following affiliates:-
- 01.1 - Tobago Cricket Association
 - 01.2 - The Secondary Schools Cricket League
 - 01.3 - The Primary Schools Cricket League
 - 01.4 - Such other Association/League promoting cricket in Trinidad & Tobago accepted from time to time provided that no new applicant shall affect the interests of present affiliates.

The Board shall determine the area in which an affiliate referred to in 19.1.04 shall operate and the Zonal Council to which it shall be attached.

- 01.5 - The Trinidad and Tobago Women Cricket Board of Control.
- 01.6 - The Trinidad and Tobago Umpires Council
- 19.02 - Application for affiliation must be forwarded to the General Secretary of the Board on a prescribed form together with the entrance fee and first annual subscription, a copy of the Constitution & Rules, names and addresses of officers and a list of member clubs on or before the first day of September in each year.
- 19.03 - Entrance and annual subscription shall be fixed by the Executive Committee from time to time by regulations made under these rules. The membership of any affiliate whose subscription is in arrears for three months shall be suspended until such arrears are paid.
- 19.04 - The Board shall determine the area in which an affiliate shall operate and the Zonal Council to which it shall be attached.
- 19.05 - The Board shall have the power to terminate the membership of any affiliate whose performance is considered inimical to the growth and interest of cricket in its particular area of operation.

Article 20 - Vacancies

- 20.1 - If any member of the Board shall die, resign or be disqualified from membership, the organization which he represents on the Board shall be requested to fill the vacancy except as provided in Article 6.08. The new appointee shall retain his membership for as long as the vacating member would have retained the same if no vacancy had occurred.
- 20.2 - Notwithstanding anything contained in article 6 sub clause 6.08 if any vacancy arises among Officers or Executive Members within eighteen (18) months of a two (2) year term, the Board at a Special or Quarterly meeting shall fill the vacancy; but if the vacancy arises six (6) months or less remaining in the two (2) year term, the Executive Committee shall fill such vacancy.

In either instance the election shall be for the un-expired period of the term of the vacating member.

Article 21 - Board's Year

The Board's year shall commence on the 1st November of any year and expire on the 31st October of the following year, but the members of the Board shall continue in office until their successors are appointed.

Article 22 - Accounts

The financial year of the Board shall be 1st August of any year to 31st July of the following year and the accounts of the Board shall be prepared at least once every year and shall be examined and its correctness certified by the Auditor(s) as hereafter provided.

Article 23 - Audit

An Auditor or Auditors shall be appointed annually at the Annual General Meeting provided that no members of the Board may be appointed as an Auditor. The Board shall fill any vacancy in the office of Auditor.

Article 24 - Regulations Governing Zonal Councils

The Executive Committee may from time to time repeat or amend regulations not inconsistent with this Constitution for the efficient conduct of business of Zonal Councils and subject to negative resolution of the Board.

Article 25 - Regulations & Bye-Laws Governing Competitions

The Executive Committee shall be empowered from time to time to formulate, adopt and amend rules governing cricket competitions in Trinidad promoted and sanctioned by the Board with such variations as to any particular competition as the Executive Committee may think expedient or necessary and the decision of the Executive Committee shall be final but subject to negative resolution of the Board.

Article 26 - Validation of Business Transacted

The business transacted at meetings of the Board and/or Zonal Council shall be valid notwithstanding the failure for any cause of the organizations represented thereon to elect/appoint their representatives in accordance with the provisions of this Constitution and Rules.

Article 27 - Rights, Obligations, Assets & Liabilities

- 27.01 - All rights and obligations, assets and liabilities of the Trinidad & Tobago Cricket Board of Control on and after the effective date, shall be the rights and obligations, assets and liabilities of the Trinidad & Tobago Cricket Board.

- 27.02 - All rights and obligations, assets and liabilities of Zonal Councils as defined in Article 7 shall be the rights and obligations, assets and liabilities of the Trinidad and Tobago Cricket Board but the rights and obligations, assets and liabilities of affiliates as defined in Article 19 shall not accrue to the Trinidad and Tobago Cricket Board, these being separate legal entities.

Article 28 – Decisions of Board

The decisions of the Board, Executive Committee, Zonal Councils, Standing Committees and duly appointed sub-committees acting on behalf of the Board and within their respective authority shall be final and binding on all players, clubs, organizations and persons affected thereby and shall only be subject to litigation in the High Court of Trinidad and Tobago provided that the process of arbitration has been tried and exhausted.

Article 29 - Definition

- 29.01 - Secretariat
Where-ever the word Secretariat appears it shall mean the Administrative Office of the Board where-ever located from time to time.
- 29.02 - Gender
The word 'he' or such masculine term shall also be read as 'she' or such feminine term.

Article 30 – Amendment of Constitution & Rules

Any member having any addition, alteration or amendment to propose to the Constitution and Rules of the Board must forward the same in writing to the General secretary at least one (1) month prior to the meeting at which he proposes to move such addition, alteration or amendment.

The General secretary shall give due notice thereof to the members which shall not be less than two (2) weeks before the date of the meeting.

No addition, alteration or amendment to the Constitution & Rules of the Board shall be made unless the same shall be proposed at a duly constituted meeting of the Board and carried by a vote of at least two-thirds of the members present and voting.

Article 31 - Effective Date

This Constitution (as amended at a Special General Meeting held on 28th June 2003 in accordance with Article 30) shall come into effect on the 1st day of September 2003.

Approved at Special Meetings of the former Trinidad and Tobago Cricket Council and the former Trinidad and Tobago Cricket Board of Control on the following dates :

January 31, 1980

Amended - October 1980
October 1983
July 23rd 1988
July 12th 1997
June 28th 2003